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His Highness His Highness
Sheikh Hamad bin Khalifa Al Thani Sheikh Tamim bin Hamad Al Thani
Emir of the State of Qatar Heir Apparent




The information contained in this Annual Report has been prepared
in good Faith, solely for the purpose of providing information to

the shareholders and to other interested parties about Milaha.
However, this Annual Report contains forward-looking statements.
Such statements are subject to risks and uncertainties as various
factors, many of which are beyond Milaha’s control, may cause actual
developments and results to differ materially from expectations
contained in the Annual Report. No representation is made or
guarantee given (either expressed or implied) as to the completeness
or accuracy of the said forward-looking statements.
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Chairman’s Message

In the Name of Allah,
Most Gracious,
Most Merciful

Dear Shareholders,

2012 was another exciting and challenging year for
Milaha, one in which we showed strongly improved

financial performance while continuing to keep one
eye on our long term strategic goals.

The combination of a dynamic Qatari economy and our
own significant, internal efforts to optimize
productivity within Milaha contributed to a strong year
overall. However, the challenges faced by the global
shipping industry continued to make themselves felt
in some of our core sectors.

We continued our journey along a transformative path,
making significant changes in the way we operate,
while acquiring and developing new capabilities that
are critical to realize our long term vision.

At the outset, | want to thank our leadership team and
our dedicated colleagues who made 2012 a successful
year.

Review of 2012 Performance

Milaha net profit increased 17% from QR 711 million
to QR 835 million, a strong performance in a difficult
global economic environment.

Milaha Maritime & Logistics, whose business is largely
focused in the region, showed strong improvement
over 2011, and helped to offset some of the continued
weakness in the global shipping sector, to which our
Gas & Petrochem strategic business unit (SBU) is
exposed.

Within Maritime & Logistics, the Port Services and
Container Feeder units delivered significantly
improved results relative to 2011. All other units
within the SBU showed improved year-on-year
performance as well. The SBU had a net profit of
QR 110 million, an increase of 133% of 2011. These
results were driven by both encouraging market
conditions as well as significant internal efficiency
efforts.

The Qatari economy continued to grow at over 5%

in 2012, driving moderate growth in imports. At the
same time, export volumes from the industries in
Mesaieed also expanded as new capacity came online.
Our ports and container feeder activities are closely
linked to both aspects of the economy.

Internally, we've taken several steps as part of our
overall transformation effort, to build stronger
capabilities and enhance our operational efficiency.

As examples, we are investing significantly in training,
and also initiating a Process Excellence effort that cuts
across multiple units.

We're already starting to see early results from these
initiatives. At Doha Port, this effort, undertaken




in conjunction with Qatar Ports Management Co.
(Mwani), has already played a role in enhancing
capacity to 650,000 TEUs in 2012, and we expect to
further increase capacity to 750,000 TEUs in 2013. On
a side note, we are also pleased to be working closely
with the New Port Steering Committee as advisors on
a number of critical issues related to the development
of the new commercial port.

Our container feeder and shipping agency units
maintained their strong market share in the face
of stiff challenges from both regional and global
competitors. We have continued to enhance our
service offering in these areas to retain existing
customers and expand our customer base.

Milaha's Gas & Petrochem SBU, Qatar Shipping, had a
mixed year. While the crude tanker markets continued
to be weak, the clean products and gas sectors

for vessels of the size owned by QShip improved,
particularly toward the end of 2012. Qatar Gas
Transport Company (Nakilat), of which we own 30%,
contributed marginally less to our bottom line in 2012
thanin 2011. The overall result was a net profit of

QR 270 million For 2012, an increase of 6% from 2011.

We also took important steps to enhance our ship
management operations. We integrated the fleet
and technical management capabilities of both our
ocean-going fleet and container feeder fleet under
one umbrella, enhancing standards and capabilities
across the group. We also implemented a state-of-
the-art Fleet Management ERP system, which will be
deployed across our fleet in the coming months. Our
charterers and operators continue to commend our
ship management team as “best in class”, an accolade
that is gratifying.

Milaha's Offshore SBU, consisting of Halul Offshore
Services Co., was awarded five new contracts in 2012
with Qatar Petroleum and Occidental Petroleum.

We also deployed our new vessel Halul 61 into Saudi
Arabia with Saudi Aramco. Unforeseen operational
issues prevented the timely deployment of two other
new vessels, and resulted in a decline in profit for
2012. The overall net profit for 2012 was QR 142
million, a decrease of 26% from 2011.

We are continuing to expand Halul's fleet in response
to strong demand from the region’s oil and gas majors,
and expect to have two vessels delivered in 2013 and a
further fourin 2014.

Operationally, Halul achieved triple certification in
2012 for ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001. Itis
the first company in Qatar and only the second in the
Middle East to achieve this, a testament to our core
principles of operational integrity.

Restructuring and Transformation

Milaha continued on the path we originally defined

in 2011, taking further critical steps to build stronger
foundations for our future. The group expended
significant effort in 2012 to translate concepts and
ideas from the drawing board into reality. The focus
was on execution as we undertook a number of critical
initiatives:

« Implemented our newly-defined Strategic
Business Management cycle from end-to-end,
which integrates our planning, budgeting and
performance management activities.

» Undertook two major systems implementations
which will form the backbone of our future
technology landscape - a Fleet Management
ERP for our core maritime operations and a
reimplementation of our Corporate ERP covering
the core support areas of Finance, HR and
Procurement

* Began roll-out of the Milaha brand locally and
regionally in phases

* Began implementation of a revised legal structure
for the group in line with our long term strategy

We also initiated a comprehensive exercise to
objectively evaluate the capabilities and skill sets in
the organization and to optimize the organizational
structure of each of the business units in line with
best practices. The exercise is ongoing and will be
implemented throughout 2013.

In 2012, | believe we succeeded in striking the right
balance between driving short term results and
investing for the future. And I'm convinced that we
are on the right path to building a stronger, global
and more sustainable future for Milaha in the coming
years.

Ali bin Jassim bin Mohammad Al-Thani




Board of Directors

Sheikh Ali bin Jassim bin Mohammad Al-Thani

Chairman and Managing Director

Sheikh Khaled bin Khalifa Al-Thani

Vice Chairman
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At the outset, it is important to note that the company
is in the midst of a strategic re-organization and
restructuring of its activities, which began with the
merger of Qatar Navigation, Qatar Shipping and Halul
Offshore in 2010, and in line with the long term vision
and strategy defined in 2011.

As a result, the company faced the unprecedented
challenge of undertaking significant changes for the
long term while still fFocusing on day-to-day activities
and achieving its financial targets in the short term.
This year, Board of Directors’ report is aligned with
Milaha's new Strategic Business Unit (SBU) structure.

The Maritime & Logistics SBU focuses primarily on
Qatar and the broader Arabian Gulf region.

The SBU has evolved out of the legacy Qatar
Navigation business which began over 55 years ago.

The SBU is involved in a diverse set of activities across
the supply chain, from container feedering to port
management to warehousing. The individual units
within Maritime & Logistics seek to coordinate their
activities so that the whole is greater than the sum of
the parts when it comes to the customer.

Overall, Milaha Maritime & Logistics had a successful
year, achieving QR 110 million in net profit, an increase
of 133% over 2011. Revenues in 2012 were QR 850
million, representing an increase of 21% over 2011.
The significantly improved results were largely driven
by Port Services and Container Feeder activities.

Each of the key units within Maritime & Logistics is
discussed in further detail below.

Milaha’s Port Services unit currently manages Doha
Port, provides cargo handling and stevedoring services
at Mesaieed Port, and manages Container Terminal 7
at Mesaieed Port on behalf of Qatar Petroleum.

Milaha took many steps in 2012 towards preparation
for operating the New Port to high international
standards, as well as improving current operations at
Doha and Mesaieed ports.

Throughout 2012, the Port Services unit continued
to develop its capabilities in port operations and
training; with one eye on the future, we have now built

a strong team to train port operators, enhance safety,
meet ISO Standards, set up engineering maintenance
systems and make radical improvements in a range of
other key areas.

Doha Port capacity will
increase to 750,000 TEU
in 2013

Doha Port

Since taking over the management of Doha

Port, Milaha has worked closely with Qatar Ports
Management Company (Mwani Qatar) to undertake
key initiatives to successfully enhance efficiency and
maximise performance of the port:

« Reorganized the layout and logistics of Doha Port
layout to create more yard space; this has been
done through demolition of redundant warehouses
and optimal use of available land.

« Undertook civil works to level the quay and re-
surface yards with minimum disruption to on-going
operations

* Installed the JADE Terminal Operating System (TOS)
at the port. The TOS is a key element in the Milaha's
‘Ten Point Plan’ for improvement to increase the
port's capacity to 750,000 Twenty-Foot Equivalent
Units (TEU) in 2013. JADE allows Milaha to carry out
yard, berth and ship planning, and also supports the
control of cargo handling equipment. In addition to
a container terminal module, Milaha is implementing
a general cargo module to serve and improve cargo
handling activities at the port through improved
communications. It is of great benefit to the entire
port community in increasing efficiency and cutting
delays.

« Implemented Rostima, a workforce management
system. The purpose of the Rostima implementation
is to efficiently schedule all labour at Doha Port,
reducing time-consuming manual processes and
streamlining operational headcount efficiency.

« Oversaw a complete overhaul of the four Mobile
Harbour Cranes to increase quayside capacity.

« Invested in new equipment to increase container
and general cargo handling capacity.




» Worked with the General Directorate of Customs
to reduce the paperwork required to clear cargo
consignments; agents can now be more efficient
thanks to on-line document processing.

Throughput at Doha Port
was 376,754 TEU, a 20%
increase on 2011

Annual throughput in 2012 at Doha Port exceeded
expectations:
- Container throughput in 2012 was 376,754 TEU, a
20% increase on 2011

* Break bulk/General cargo amounted to 430,291
freight tonnes, a 25% increase on 2011

* Live Stock cargo amounted to 480,355 Heads, a 29%
increase on 2011

* Ro-Ro units (Cars & Equipment) handled amounted
t0 99,239, a 51% increase on 2011

Milaha improved average
crane productivity at
Mesaieed CT7 from 30

to over 37 moves per hour

Mesaieed CT7

In May 2011, Milaha began a six month trial period of
servicing container vessels at Mesaieed CT7 to ensure
all terminal equipment and systems were operating
correctly. At the start of 2012, Milaha attained average
productivity of 30+ crane moves per hour. By the end
of 2012, Milaha improved average crane productivity
at Mesaieed CT7 to 37+ moves per hour. These
results have exceeded shipping lines’ expectations,
and customers regularly commend Milaha on the
improvements made.

The Engineering team at Mesaieed CT7 took
significant steps to enhance equipment availability
and productivity, including development of a full
maintenance schedule for all equipment and creation
of fixed and mobile workshops with all necessary tools.

CT7 milestones in 2012 included:
« Container throughput totalled 34,488 TEUs,
representing a 10% increase on 2011

« First operation of two vessels simultaneously

* First deployment of three cranes to a vessel (MV Al
Bidda); 331 moves completed in 3.5hrs

* First servicing of a Military vessel (MV BBC Seattle)

« First import shipment of containers for the New Port
Project (NPP)

Mesaieed Berth 9/10
Milaha operates as a stevedore for the commercial

jetty at Mesaieed Port. Milaha introduced a number




of initiatives in 2012 for cost reduction and savings
through greater efficiency. The full benefits of these
initiatives will be realised in 2013.

Berth 9/10 initiatives and milestones in 2012 included:
» Awarded a two-year (external) Hatch Cleaning
contract with Qatalum worth approximately
QR1.5mn

* 1 million+ man hours reached without a Lost Time
Accident (LTA)

Training and Development

During 2012, Port Services invested in an extensive
training program to enhance the skills of the workforce
and to initiate the concept of continuous improvement.
All training in practical operational and equipment

500,000 - Il TEUs per year
400,000 f
U 275,760
240,310
200,000 |
100,000 F
o | RELELlY YEAR 2008

Milaha’s total container volumes grew strongly by

just over 15%, from 404,881 TEU's to 466,060 TEU's in
2012, aided by strong demand growth in Qatar for both
imports and exports.

Milaha maintained its leadership position in the feeder
trade between UAE and Qatar in 2012, powered by a
fleet of 8 fully cellularised container vessels & 7 tug/
barge combinations (totalling an intake capacity of

263,614

YEAR 2009

6,875 TEUSs). Out of the 8 fully cellularised vessels,

one vessel is chartered out until February 2014. To
meet the strong growth in exports from Mesaieed'’s
industrial base, Milaha chartered in an additional vessel
for the short term.

skills is conducted under a “Train the Trainer” model
with the goal of Milaha becoming fully self-sufficient
by the end of 2013 with regards to in-house practical
training.

Involvement with New Port Project (NPP)

Milaha works closely with the NPP Steering Committee.
In line with a recommendation from the New Port
auditors in November 2011, the Committee requested
advice from Milaha experts on practical issues relating
to the design of Facilities for the NPP container
terminal. Milaha has since provided advice on terminal
layout, operating methods, ship-to-shore container
cranes, yard equipment, terminal operating system
(TOS), handling hazardous cargo, safety, security and
other critical matters.

466,060

YEAR 2012

404,881

YEAR 2011

317,968

YEAR 2010

To enhance service quality and optimise fleet
efficiency, Milaha took a decision to replace old
barges and as a first step removed two 36-year old
combinations of small tugs/barges towards the end of
2012.




Milaha continued to be the leading service provider in
three key trades
1) Doha / UAE / Doha Service: Milaha continues to be
the only feeder service provider in this sector.

2) Mesaieed — UAE Service: Connects UAE ports

Service-wise Traffic 2011-2012

246,555

250,000

206,055
200,000

160,
150,000

100,000

50,000

DOHA - UAE Service

1. Doha-UAE-Doha Sector:
Milaha captured over 65% market share in the
Doha - UAE - Doha container trade thanks to its

IMPORT

Sr.No. Carrier

TEUs

MESAIEED - UAE Service

% Share
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to Mesaieed to cater for export shipments from
Mesaieed Industrial City.

3) Intra-Gulf Coastal Service: Connects UAE coastal

ports, carrying cargo between Abu Dhabi, Sharjah
and Jebel Ali.

[l YEAR-2011 VOLUME (TEUS)
! YEAR-2012 VOLUME (TEUS)

183,905
630

37,956 35,601

Intra Gulf Coastal Service

regular services, relatively modern fleet, and excellent
reputation built over the years.

EXPORT TOTAL

TEUs % Share  TEUs % Share

Others

81,544 34.19%

TOTAL 238,499 100.00%

48,655 35.19% 130,199 34.56%

138,255 100.00% 376,754 100.00%
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Milaha captured over
65% market share in
the Doha-UAE-Doha
container trade

2. Mesaieed-UAE-Mesaieed Sector:
Total volume carried during 2012 was 183,905 TEU's, a
14.5% increase in volume over 2011.

3. Intra Gulf Coastal Service:

Milaha continued to be a significant service provider
in UAE coastal sector, deploying own tugs and barges,
carrying a total of 35,602 TEU's during 2012 in this
sector.

Additionally, Milaha sought to expand its service to
include the Karachi / Jebel Ali sector, in partnership
with third party vessel operators.

Milaha handled almost
2.6 million tonnes of
cargoin 2012

Milaha's Bulk Shipping unit specializes in marine
transport of project cargo and dry freight within the
Gulf region.

The dry bulk shipping market is going through one of
its worst phases, with the Baltic Dry Index hitting all-
time lows during 2012.

Given the market situation, the relatively new Milaha
Bulk Shipping unit focused largely on establishing
itself as an active facilitator of Gabbro shipment in the
Arabian Gulf region.

The unit handled almost 2.6 million tonnes of cargo,
more than doubling the cargo handled in 2011.

A key achievement for Bulk Shipping in 2012 was
bringing into the Gabbro Terminal at Mesaieed Port for
the Ffirst time, a mini-capesize vessel of 106,000 DWT.
This initiative has significantly increased efficiency and
productivity relative to others on a per metric tonne
basis.

Milaha acted as agent
for 61% of vessels calling
Qatarin 2012

Milaha's Shipping Agency unit acts as an agent on
behalf of vessels calling Qatari ports. The agency’s
activities include arranging berthing, un-berthing,
loading and discharging activities, in addition to
port / customs / immigration clearance activities.
Additionally, the agency provides shipping lines
with non-cargo related services such as supplying
provisions, and handling crew formalities and
requirements including crew sign on / off, entry
passes, transportation arrangements, accommodation
arrangements and medical assistance.

In an increasingly competitive market, the Shipping
Agency unit maintained a major share of the market,
acting as agents for 61% of vessels calling Qatar in
2012. In addition to its traditional agency customers,
the unit brought focus to newly prevalent vessel
types such as cement vessels and other general cargo
vessels.

Major Achievements in 2012
« Handled agency activities for 1,450 vessels in 2012
vs. 1,3151in 2011, representing an increase of more
than 10%.

 Increased handling general cargo, RO-RO and
container vessels compared to 2011.

» Captured the agency activities for 36 “rock” vessels
intended for the construction of the New Port.

* Increased share in the cement vessel market from
75% in 2011 to 81%in 2012.

Milaha's Logistics unit provides freight forwarding
(air, sea and land), land transport, project and contract
logistics, warehousing and distribution services. It
provides integrated logistics solutions to customers
through an international freight forwarding network.

Anticipated infrastructure projects in Qatar did not
materialize in 2012 to the extent expected, which
led to a decline in revenues for project logistics and
land transport activities, although this is expected to




improve during 2013 as more infrastructure projects
are awarded.

Qatar Petrochemicals
Company (QAPCO)
awarded Milaha a
door-to-door freight
forwarding contract,
the first for Milaha

The freight forwarding market showed slight
improvement as more companies seek to reduce their
supply chain cost by outsourcing in-house logistics
activities. An example of this is Qatar Petrochemicals
Company (QAPCO), which awarded Milaha a door-to-
door freight forwarding contract, the first for Milaha
and a significant step towards realizing Milaha's
strategic direction of providing synchronised solutions
to its customers.

The unit secured a 5-year contract for the supply
of cranes to QAPCO. Other wins include a logistics
support contract for the JGC Barzan Project and a
3-year freight forwarding, transport and customs
clearance contract from Qatar Steel (QS).

Increasing work took place within Logistics to prepare
for the implementation of a new IT platform in 2013
while continuously adjusting the size of the asset base,
increasing efficiency and profitability.

Milaha’s NVOCC unit mainly operates in the Gulf-Indian
Subcontinent sector, connecting approximately 36
ports between the Arabian Gulf, India, Pakistan and the
Far East. The unit carried 20,666 export TEU's across its
network in 2012.

The unit maintained its top position in the NVOCC
market in the Jebel Ali — Doha sector, carrying 8,237
TEUs in 2012, an increase of over 10% from 2011.
Even though total volumes on the ISC-Gulf routes
declined during 2012, Milaha's volumes on the key
trades grew. For example, export volumes from Jebel
Ali grew to 9,170 TEUs in 2012, an increase of almost
35% from 2011.
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The NVOCC unit took significant steps to modernize
its operations and is in the process of implementing

a new web-based container tracking and handling
system. The new system provides operational data on
areal time basis, allowing enhanced decision-making
capabilities through analytics.

The unit took ownership of 400 20ft standard and 200
40ft high cube containers, which were previously on a
lease-purchase agreement. The balance dry containers
are expected to become fully-owned by 2013. The size
of the fleet is continuously optimized with due regard
to business and profitability.

G. Ship Repair and Fabrication

The Ship Repair and Fabrication unit operates a
shipyard in Mesaieed Industrial City, offering a wide
range of services to the shipping and industrial

sectors including dry docking, refit works, fabrication,
machining, and a full range of float repairs and
maintenance works. The Facilities include two floating
docks, a heavy duty mechanical ship lift, five dry berths,
6,000 square meters of specialised workshops and two
quays providing afloat repairs.

In 2012, the unit successfully completed dry-docking of
90 vessels, along with 283 afloat repair jobs.

Key achievements in 2012
The shipyard continued to improve operational
performance through better planning of works and

manpower as well as improving relationships with
existing and new clients. Main achievements of 2012
included:
* Achieved 142% occupancy of floating dock 1 and
144% occupancy of floating dock 2

* Achieved 131% occupancy of the dry berth areas
 Was awarded five new short and medium term
contracts with an approximate total value of QR 40

million

« Gained five new international clients

Milaha'’s shipyard
achieved over 130%
occupancy of both
floating docks and dry
berths

Investments in facilities and capabilities
The unit continued to invest in new machinery and in
upgrading its facilities while implementing a number of
initiatives to improve capabilities:
 Expanded/modernized the facilities including
procuring new machinery and equipment




« Invested in personnel by completing a number of
certification programs for 15 welders in copper
nickel welding and aluminium welding, with

certification provided by ABS and Det Norske Veritas.

« Conducted major repairs of the dry berth area

* Modified floating dock 2 to increase capacity

Milaha Gas & Petrochem mainly consists of the
erstwhile Qatar Shipping’s activities.

As part of re-organization, Qatar Shipping (QShip) took
over ship management of Milaha's container feeder
fleet during 2012.

QShip achieved a net profit of QR 270 million in 2012,
an increase of 6% from 2011, due to a one-time gain
related to an increase in the company’s stake in two

LNG carriers. Excluding the one-time gain, the SBU
showed a modest decline in profit relative to 2011.

QShip’s owned vessels
undertook 98 voyages
and transported
approximately 3.5 million
metric tonnes of cargo

Fully owned fleet

QShip’s fully owned and operated deep-sea fleet
traded worldwide and called at terminals operated
by most of the major oil companies and leading
international charterers. Some vessels completed
their time charters and were then traded in pools,
while more than half continued to be on time charter
to leading industry names such as Total, Norden and
Qatar Fertiliser Company (QAFCO), carrying cargoes
of crude oil, clean and dirty petroleum products, and
refrigerated ammonia. The feedback from each of
the vessels’ charterers and operators was gratifying,
with QShip’s operations being rated as best in class.
QShip continued to play an important role in delivering
Qatar's industrial output, with the extension of the
time charter of our second gas carrier Al Majedah to
QAFCO (the Ffirst carrier, Al Marona has been on time
charter to QAFCO since delivery in 2004).

The shipping markets for tankers and gas carriers were
mixed. While the crude tanker market has suffered, the
clean products sector and the gas sector for vessels of

the size in QShip’s fleet were resilient.

In the Medium Range (MR) tanker sector, where QShip
has two vessels, the market showed an appreciable
increase towards the end of the year and, as two time
charters come to an end this year, Qship expects to see
improved rates during the course of the year.

QShip’s owned vessels performed a total of 98 voyages
and transported approximately 3.5 million metric
tonnes of cargo.

NAME OF VESSEL TYPE OF VESSEL DWT (MT) VOYAGES TOTAL CARGO
CARRIED (MT)
JINAN Product/ chemical tanker 37,285 13 336,204
DUKHAN Product/ chemical tanker 37,283 12 354,953
UMLMA Crude Oil/DPP carrier 106,054 23 1,785,589
MESAIEED Crude/ Clean and Dirty Products 106,054 13 81,067
KHAWR ALADID Crude / Clean and Dirty Products 106,054 9 569,594
ALMARONA LPG carrier 17,446 14 196,630
ALMAJEDAH LPG carrier 17,446 14 202,047




Partially owned LNG vessels

QShip partially owns 9 LNG carriers through various
joint ventures with global majors, with stakes ranging
from 15% to 40%. In January 2012, QShip increased its
share in two LNG vessels from 25% to 40%.

The vessels, renamed Milaha Ras Laffan and Milaha
Qatar in July 2012, are now commercially operated by
QShip, a first for Milaha. To commemorate the Ffirst
loading operations of these vessels under the new
names, ceremonies were held at Ras Laffan port.

Qship began to
commercially operate

2 partly-owned LNG
carriers, a first for Milaha

Ship management - Gas & Tanker Fleet

The technical and operational performance of the fleet
continued to be excellent. In addition to the United
States Coast Guard observation-free acceptance, all
vessels complied with oil major requirements and
carried cargoes worldwide for many of them. The
vessels have passed all port state control inspections
successfully.

As in previous years, there was no pollution incident of
any nature involving the QShip fleet.

In 2012, one LPG tanker was dry-docked at the Nakilat
Keppel shipyard in Qatar for the first time, to show
commitment to supporting Qatari industrial growth.

Qship dry docked its first
vessel at the Nakilat
Keppel shipyard in Qatar
in 2012

Ship management - Container fleet

In 2012, QShip took over fleet and technical
management activities for the erstwhile Qatar
Navigation’s container feeders, tugs and barges, as
well as one bulk carrier, with the goal of aligning
and enhancing fleet management standards and
capabilities across the SBUs. QShip continued to

implement best practice ship management to
maintain the fleet with up to date certifications from
established classification societies (mainly Lloyd's
Register of the United Kingdom and Bureau Veritas of
France).

Milaha made strides to further support Qatar’s
National Vision 2030 by recruiting Qatari cadets into
the crewing section as well as employing Qatari marine
officers directly in the fleet.

Operational Improvements

Milaha successfully undertook a major project in

2012 to implement a single Fleet Management ERP
system (SHIPNET) across Milaha's fleet (including
offshore support vessels). This system is expected

to go live throughout the fleet, resulting in further
improvements in operations, notably in safety and cost
effectiveness.

Milaha supported Qatar’s
National Vision 2030 by
recruiting Qatari cadets
into the crewing section
as well as employing
Qatari marine officers
directly in the fleet

Continuing the focus on managing costs, measures
were put in place (and further measures are being
evaluated) to improve the energy efficiency of the
fleet, with the implementation of the Shipboard
Energy Efficiency Management Plan for all vessels.

The Milaha Offshore SBU presently consists entirely of
Halul Offshore Services Co. and is the offshore services
arm of the group.

Halul achieved a net profit of QR 142 million, a decline
of 26% year-on-year, due to unforeseen operational
issues. Higher than expected breakdown costs and
offhire time negatively impacted profitability in the
first quarter of 2012.




Vessel Client Contract Duration
Halul 15 Occidental Petroleum 1 Year

Halul 16 Occidental Petroleum 5 Years

Halul 30&17 Qatar Petroleum 5 years

Halul 28 Qatar Petroleum 3 Years

Halul 32 Qatar Petroleum 3 Years

Newbuildings

As part of its long term growth strategy, and in line
with the increased demand from oil and gas majors
in the region, Halul has embarked on a strategic
newbuilding programme.

During the year the company received one Anchor
Handling Tug (Halul 61), built in Malaysia at a cost of

USD 17.6 million, which was deployed into service with
Saudi Aramco.

Halul embarked on a
strategic newbuilding
programme with new
vessel deliveries expected
in 2013 and 2014

Further, Halul expects delivery of the two Anchor
Handling Tug Supply vessels (DP2) being built in

Grandweld (Dubai) in May and June 2013. These
vessels are intended to meet the ever growing needs
of the GCC-based oil companies for AHTS vessels with
DP2 capabilities.

To support the aggressive growth of its offshore
services business, Milaha signed contracts to build
four vessels at a total cost of USD 86.4 million -

two Platform Supply vessels (PSV) and two Anchor
Handling Tug Supply vessels (AHTS) — with engineering
major Larsen & Toubro in India. The four vessels will be
equipped with DP2 capability. Delivery of the PSVs is
scheduled for February and April 2014, while delivery
of the AHTS vessels is expected in March and May
2014. Marketing of these vessels will start in the last
quarter of 2013.

As part of Halul's expansion plan the company is
currently evaluating 2 tenders to build a saturation
diving support vessels and two 125 TBP AHTS. These
vessels are meant to support the future international
expansion of the company.

Triple certification achievement

In 2012, Halul became the first company in Qatar to
achieve this and only the second in the entire Middle
East to achieve triple certification. This was further
proof of Halul's commitment to its core principle

of operational integrity. During 2012, Halul was
recertified in ISO 9001 and was certified in OHSAS
18001. 1SO 14001 was awarded towards the end of
2011.
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Halul became the first
company in Qatar and
only the second in the
entire Middle East to
achieve triple certification
in ISO 9001, ISO 14001
and OHSAS 18001

4. MILAHA CAPITAL

Milaha Capital is the investments and real estate arm of
the group. The SBU was created to allow greater focus
on investment activities outside the core maritime
activities of the group.

The SBU achieved QR 296 million in net profit, an
increase of 43% over 2011.

Investments

Milaha Capital has a unique advantage of capitalising
on sound investment opportunities backed by the
group’s long term strategic relationships and solid

reputation in the Qatari market. The unit manages a
large portfolio of financial equity investments, both
listed and unlisted, with the primary goal of maximizing
shareholding value by achieving optimal returns at
the desired level of risk. The listed / non-listed equity
portfolio acts as a reserve for the group during the
inherent business cycles in the maritime sector.

The total financial portfolio of listed equities reached
QR 2.9 billion at the end of 2012, achieving returns for
the Available-for-Sale (AFS) and Held-for-Trading (HFT)
portfolios, both outperforming the Qatar Exchange
Index.

Real Estate

Milaha Capital has a full-fledged real estate

services team that focuses on real estate property
development as well as property and facilities
management of Milaha's existing portfolio of real
estate investment properties. Over the years, the real
estate team has evolved from developing operating
properties to becoming a mature developer, adding
sound long term value for shareholders. As of
December 2012, the portfolio of real estate investment
properties was independently valued at QR 3.2 billion.

Real Estate Investment Properties - active
management of a large investment properties
portfolio across Doha, with exposure in the residential,
commercial, showrooms/retail, mixed-use properties




which are leased to either individual tenants or blue
chip companies. Milaha Capital's in-house property
management team manages marketing and leasing
activities, as well as outsourced facilities managers.
During 2012, Milaha Capital achieved high occupancy
levels for its investments properties and also managed
to secure new long term tenants for the coming years.

Real Estate Development Projects — Milaha has an
impressive track record of real estate development

in Doha. The portfolio of development projects has
exposure to mixed-use, residential compounds,
commercial offices and logistics/warehouse
developments. An in-house team of engineers actively
manages the development projects that are in the
pipeline.

During the year, the real estate team worked actively
towards progressing the ongoing development
projects:
- Corniche Tower Project — demolished existing
building and expected to begin construction of a
mixed-use tower

- Ain Khaled Project — demolished the commercial
portion of the project and expected to begin
construction of the commercial zone while tendering
for the residential development

- Al Thumamma Project — project on track with
enabling works near completion and awaiting
municipality approvals to commence infrastructure
works

- Ras Laffan Project — project is on track with design
work in-progress and consultants / contractors on
board

Milaha Trading Focuses on commercial agency activities
and consists of four business lines: Navigation Trading
Agencies, Navigation Marine Service Centre, Navigation
Travel & Tourism and Bunker Sales. The SBU, as a
whole, achieved net profit of QR 19 million, an increase
of 54% over 2011.

Each unit within the Trading SBU is discussed further
below.

Navigation Trading Agencies (NTA)
NTA is the exclusive agent in Qatar for international
brands for trucks and heavy equipment such as

Hino (Japan), Fassi (Italy), Sennebogen (Germany),
Doosan (Korea) and Sany (China). The unit bounced
back into profitability from the lows seen during the
economic downturn in 2010 and 2011, even though
all infrastructure related projects have not yet fully
materialized.

The unit also runs a service centre catering for Hino
trucks, and which also caters for third party trucks

and vehicles. The centre received the “2011 Service
Department of the Year” award from Hino and was
chosen by Hino as one of the top 10 workshops in the
world for the 4th year in a row. NTA also received a
“Kaizen Parts Facility” award from Hino Motors in 2012,
also pertaining to 2011.

During 2012, NTA signed a new dealership agreement
with Dutch manufacturer, Terberg, to market and sell
port terminal tractors.

Navigation Marine Service Centre (NMSC)

NMSC is the sole distributor of several international
brands of marine lubricants and chemicals, including
Castrol Marine, Castrol Offshore, Fuchs Automotive
& Fuchs Industrial Lubricants. The unit is also a dealer
/ stockist for Unitor and Nalfleet Marine Chemicals.
NMSC is also the agent for Doosan Marine Engines in
both Qatar and U.A.E.

Sales of marine lubricants and chemicals declined in
2012 on the back of a weaker offshore sector in Qatar.

Navigation Travel & Tourism (NTT)

One of the first travel agents in Qatar, NTT is an

IATA approved agent providing a full range of travel
services. In 2012, NTT continued to expand its offering
by initiating embedded corporate travel offices for key
clients such as Qatar Investment Authority (QIA). In
addition, NTT also initiated 24/7 availability to cater for
clients’ needs outside traditional working hours.

NTT is one of the top ten agents for Qatar Airways, the
national carrier, and for several travel vendors and tour
operators such as Radisson Blu and Gulliver's Travel
Associates (GTA).

Bunker Sales

Trading’s Bunker Sales unit mainly distributes marine
gas oil (MGO) and intermediate fuel oils (IFO) to
vessels calling Qatar’s ports under an agreement with
Qatar Fuel (Wogod). The unit improved its bottom line
relative to 2011, mainly due to a modest increase in
project activity in Qatar.
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Financial Highlights

Operating Revenues & Expenses (in QR 000's)

2,353,051

2,191,427

1,777,827
1,730,423

575,224

461,004

Operating Revenues Operating Expenses Operating Profit
The operating revenue during the year 2012 QR 835 Million (QR 711 Million - 2011). The earning
amounted to QR 2.353 Billion (QR 2.191 Billion - per share amounted to QR 7.29 (QR 6.21 - 2011).
2011). The operating profit was QR 575 Million The Shareholders equity was QR 10.723 Billion

(QR 461 Million - 2011) and the net profit was (QR 10.566 Billion - 2011).



We have audited the accompanying consolidated
financial statements of Qatar Navigation Q.S.C. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management is responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to

the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of

the consolidated financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's

internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made

by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2012, and
its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards.

Furthermore, in our opinion proper books of account
have been kept by the Company, an inventory count
has been conducted in accordance with established
principles and the financial statements comply with
the Qatar Commercial Companies’ Law No. 5 of 2002
and the Company'’s Articles of Association. We further
confirm that the financial information included

in the Annual Report of the Board of Directors is

in agreement with the books and records of the
Company. We have obtained all the information and
explanations we required for the purpose of our
audit, and are not aware of any violations of the above
mentioned law or the Articles of Association having
occurred during the year which might have a material
effect on the business of the Company or on its
financial position.

Firas Qoussous
of Ernst & Young
Auditor’s Registration No. 236

Date: 13 March 2013
Doha




For the year ended 31 December 2012

Operating revenues

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Operating supplies and expenses
Rent expenses

Depreciation and amortization
Other operating expenses

OPERATING PROFIT

Finance costs

Finance income

Gain on disposal of property, vessels and equipment
Share of results of associates

Miscellaneous income

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interest

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

(attributable to equity holders of the parent
expressed in QR per share)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Net movement on hedging reserve

Net (loss) gain on available-for-sale investments
Other comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interest

Notes

(0,

(o)}

Notes

(ee}

2012
QR’000

2,353,051
(579,872)
(785,789)
(54,616)
(269,259)
(88,291)

(52,066)
59,380
4,549
227,807
52,187
(30,426)

836,655

835,417
1,238

2012
QR’000

28,057

579,419
1,246

2011
QR’000

2,191,427
(518,717)
(784,850)
(55,972)
(299,501)
(71,383)

(44,219)
58,639
8,220
244,714
16,440
(31,795)

713,003

710,990
2,013

2011
QR’000

(701,291)

253,231
1,900

The attached notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements



For the year ended 31 December 2012

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, vessels and equipment
Investment properties

Intangible assets

Investment in associates
Available-for-sale investments
Loans to LNG and LPG companies
Notes receivable

Current assets
Inventories
Accounts receivable and prepayments

Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss

Bank balances and cash

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Attributable to equity holders of the parent
Share capital

Legal reserve

General reserve

Fair value reserve

Hedging reserve

Retained earnings

Proposed dividends

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interest

Total equity

Non-current liabilities

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Advance from a customer

Employees’ end of service benefits
Obligation under finance leases

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accruals
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Obligation under finance leases

Bank overdrafts

Total liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

H.E. Sheikh Ali bin Jassim bin Mohammed Al-Thani
Chairman and Managing Director

Notes

10
11
13
14
15

16
17
18
19

20
21
22

24

25
26
27
28

29
25
28
19

2012
QR’000

3,688,566
647,382
42,941
3,752,395
2,782,940
358,356
1,914

162,092
597,872
489,290
1,558,009

1,145,252
4,693,986

623,542
2,859,694
(935,224)
1,906,636

429,469

10,723,355
57,468

1,770,398
187,497
69,943
300

469,357
800,322
3,080
37

2011
QR’000

3,465,514
684,220
71,020
3,617,194
3,282,885
338,340
1,821

114,851
611,251
202,457
923,348

1,145,252
4,693,986

623,542
3,143,749
(963,281)
1,521,573

400,838

10,565,659
56,222

513,722
187,497
66,018
3,451

459,742
1,446,311
6,257
8,022

Mr. Khalifa bin Ali Al-Hetmi
President & CEO

The attached notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements



For the year ended 31 December 2012

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the year

Adjustments to reconcile profit to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance costs
Gain on disposal of property, vessels and equipment
Share of results of associates
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits
Finance income
Dividend income
Net fair value loss (gain) on financial investments at fair value
through profit or loss
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments
Write off of investment properties
Profit on disposal of investments

Operating profit before working capital changes:
Inventories
Receivables
Payables

Cash flows from operating activities
Finance costs paid

Employees’ end of service benefits paid
Transfer to pension fund

Net cash flows from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, vessels and equipment

Dividend income

Finance income

Proceeds from disposal of property, vessels and equipment
Purchases of investment properties

Additions to dry docking costs

Loans to LNG and LPG companies

Purchase of investment securities

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale investments
Proceeds from disposal of financial investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Dividends received from an associate

Investment in associates

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Notes

13
27

27
27

10
11

2012
QR’000

836,655

269,259
52,066
(4,549)

(227,807)
19,981

(59,380)

(107,566)

7,743
30,426
11,717

(139,257)

689,288
(47,241)
13,286
(7,487)

647,846
(52,066)
(11,472)

(4,796)

(419,373)
107,566
59,380
9,921
(173)
(24,937)
(20,016)
(435,963)
366,992

88,509
142,800
(15,093)

2011
QR'000

713,003

299,501
44,219
(8,220)

(244,714)
15,915

(58,639)

(103,999)

(22,161)
31,795

(1,301)

665,399

29,780
(55,275)
190,933

830,837
(44,219)
(3,464)
(2,968)

(475,908)
103,999
58,639
9,435
(3,463)
(42,006)
43,904
(326,306)
36,081

153,971
126,000

The attached notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements



FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid

Net movement in interest bearing loans and borrowings
Obligation under finance lease

Net movement in term deposits maturing after 90 days

Net cash flows used in financing activities

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents the beginning of the year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER

Notes

24

19

19

2012
QR’000

(400,838)
610,687
(6,328)
(670,089)
(466,568)
(27,443)
814,632

787,189

2011
QR’000

(458,100)
7,259
(5,866)
25,452
(431,255)
33,277
781,355

814,632

The attached notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

Qatar Navigation Q.S.C. (the “Company”) or (the
“Parent”) was incorporated on 5 July 1957 as a

Qatari Shareholding Company. The registered office
of the Company is located in Doha, State of Qatar.
The shares of the Company are publically traded at
Qatar Exchange. The Parent company along with its
subsidiaries is engaged primarily in marine transport,
acting as agent to foreign shipping lines, offshore
services, sale of heavy vehicles, ship repair, fabrication
and installation of offshore structures, land transport,
chartering of vessels, real estate, investments in listed
and unlisted securities, trading of building materials
and the operation of a travel agency. The Company has
a branch in Dubai, United Arab Emirates.

The consolidated financial statements comprise

the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) as at and for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
13 March 2013.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared
under the historical cost convention except for
available-for-sale investments, financial investments at
fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial
instruments that have been measured at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Qatari Riyals (“QR"), which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (QR'000) except when
otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements have

been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and applicable
requirements of Qatar Commercial Companies’ Law
No. 5 of 2002.

2.2 Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group

obtains control, and continue to be consolidated

until the date when such control ceases. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the parent company, using
consistent accounting policies. All intra-group balances,
transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from
intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated
in full.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion

of profit or loss and net assets not held by the

Group and are presented separately in the
consolidated statement income and within equity

in the consolidated statement of financial position,
separately from parent equity holders’ equity. Total
comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed
to the non-controlling interest even if that results in a
deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

The Group's subsidiaries and the shareholding in
subsidiaries are as follows:

Ownership Percentage

Name of the subsidiary 31 Dec.2012 31 Dec. 2011

Qatar Shipping Company S.P.C. 100% 100%
Halul Offshore Services W.L.L. 100% 100%
Qatar Quarries and Building

Materials Company Q.P.S.C. (i) 50% 50%
GulF Shipping Investment

Company W.L.L. 100% 100%
Qatar Shipping Company (India

Private Limited 100% 100%
Ocean Marine Services W.L.L. 100% 100%
Halul United Business

Services L.L.C. 100% 100%

(i) The Group's exercises control over the financial and
operating policies of Qatar Quarries Building Materials
Company Q.P.S.C based on the control exercised over
the Board of Directors and the Management.

In addition to the above subsidiaries the Group has
incorporated 9 wholly owned subsidiaries as a result
of internal group restructuring which have started
operations effective 1 January 2013. The Group is

in the process of transferring the related assets and
liabilities to these subsidiaries. The newly incorporated
subsidiaries are as follows:

31 December 2012
% Ownership

Milaha Trading Company W.L.L. 100%
Navigation Travel & Tourism S.P.C. 100%
Navigation Trading Agencies S.P.C. 100%
Navigation Marine Service Center S.P.C. 100%
Milaha Capital W.L.L. 100%
Milaha Real Estate services S.P.C. 100%

Milaha Maritime and Logistics Integrated W.L.L. 100%

The attached notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements



Interest in joint ventures

The Group has interests in joint ventures, which are
jointly controlled entities, whereby the venturers
have contractual arrangements that establish joint
control over the economic activities of the entities.
The arrangements require unanimous agreements
for financial and operating decisions among the
venturers. The Group recognises its interest in the
joint ventures using the proportionate consolidation
method. The Group combines its proportionate share
of each of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses
of the joint ventures with similar items, line by line,

in its consolidated financial statements. The financial
statements of the joint ventures are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Group. Adjustments
are made, where necessary, to bring the accounting
policies in line with those of the Group.

The Group's share of intra-group balances, transactions
and unrealised gains and losses on such transactions
between the Group and its joint ventures are
eliminated on consolidation. Losses on transactions
are recognised immediately if there is evidence of
areduction in the net realisable value of current

assets or an impairment loss. The joint ventures are
proportionately consolidated until the date on which
the Group ceases to have joint control over the joint
ventures.

Upon loss of joint control, the Group measures and
recognises its remaining investment at its fair value.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
investment upon loss of joint control and the fair
value of the remaining investment and proceeds

from disposal is recognised in profit or loss. When the
remaining investment constitutes significant influence,
it is accounted for as an investment in an associate.

3.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with
those of the previous financial year except for the
following amendments and interpretations which
became effective during the year, but were not
relevant to the Group’s operations:

* IAS 12 Income Taxes (Amendment) — Deferred Taxes:

Recovery of Underlying Assets

« IFRS 1 First-Time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards (Amendment) — Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-
Time Adopters

* IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Enhanced Derecognition Disclosure Requirements

3.2 Standards issued but not yet effective

The standards, amendments and interpretations that
are not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the
Group's financial statements and are relevant to the
Group are disclosed below:

The Group intends to adopt these standards when they
become effective.

Standard/
Interpretation Content Effective date
IAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income
Amendments to IAS 1 1 July 2012
IAS 19 Employee Benefits (Revised) 1 January 2013
IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011) 1 January 2013
IAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities — Amendments to IAS 3:. 1 January 2014
IFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities — Amendments to IFRS 7 1 January 2013
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement 1 January 2015
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2013
IFRS 11 Joint arrangements 1 January 2013
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2013
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013

Annual improvements —-May 2012

The Group is currently considering the implications of
these new standards, amendments and interpretations
which are effective for future accounting periods

and has not early adopted any new standard or
amendments during the year.

1 January 2013

3.3. Summary of significant accounting polices
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised on the following basis:

The attached notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - For the year ended 31 December 2012

3.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from chartering of vessels and others (continued)

Revenue from chartering of vessels and others:
Revenue from chartering of vessels, equipment and
others is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance
with the terms of the contract entered into with
customers.

Sales of goods and services:

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have passed to the buyer and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably.

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised
when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated
reliably, by reference to the stage of completion of the
transaction at the reporting date.

Cargo transport and container barge income:

The value of all work invoiced during the year as
adjusted for uncompleted trips. Attributable profit on
uncompleted trips is accounted for on a percentage of
completion basis after making due allowance for future
estimated losses.

Shipping agency income:
Shipping agency income is recognised on the
completion of all supply requirements for vessels.

Loading, clearance and land transport income:
Loading, clearance and land transport income is
recognised only after completion of these services.

Rental income:
Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for on a time proportion basis.

Investment income:

Income from investments is accounted for on an
accrual basis when right to receive the income is
established.

Dividend income:
Dividend income is accounted for on an accrual basis
when right to receive the income is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as interest accrues using
the effective interest rate method, under which the
rate used exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is,

or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date. The arrangement
is assessed for whether fulfilment of the arrangement
is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets
or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or

assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an
arrangement.

Group as a lessee

Finance leases that substantially transfer all the risks
and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased
item, are capitalised at the commencement of the
lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Lease payments are apportioned between
finance charges and reduction of the lease liability

so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
recognised in finance costs in the consolidated income
statement.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of
the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty
that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the
lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter
of either estimated useful life of the asset or the lease
term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
operating expense in the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer,
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of an asset are classified as operating leases. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Property, vessels and equipment

Property, vessels and equipment are stated at cost,
excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.
The cost of property, vessels and equipment includes
all directly attributable costs including the borrowing
costs that are directly attributable to the construction
of the asset.

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis on

all property, vessels and equipment, except freehold
land, which is determined to have an indefinite life. The
estimated residual value at the end of the estimated
useful life is also considered in the depreciation of
vessels. The rates of depreciation are based upon the
following estimated useful lives:
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Buildings 25 years
New vessels 25 years
Used vessels 3-25 years
Barges and containers 10-20 years
Machinery, equipment and tools 4 -7 years
Furniture and fittings 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 3-7 years

The carrying values of property, vessels and equipment
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value

may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists
and where the carrying values exceed the estimated
recoverable amount, the assets are written down to
their recoverable amount.

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of

an item of property, vessels and equipment that is
accounted for separately is capitalised and the carrying
amount of the component that is replaced is written
off. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised only
when it increases future economic benefits of the
related item of property, vessels and equipment. All
other expenditure is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as the expense is incurred.

An item of property, vessels and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset is included in the income statement in the
year the asset is derecognised.

Capital work-in-progress

The costs of capital work-in-progress consist of the
contract value, and directly attributable costs of
developing and bringing the assets to the location
and condition necessary for them to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management.
The costs of capital work-in-progress will be
transferred to property, plant and equipment when
these assets reach their working condition for their
intended use. The carrying values of capital work-in-
progress are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value
may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists
and where the carrying values exceed the estimated
recoverable amount, the assets are written down to
their recoverable amount.

Investment properties

Land and buildings are considered as investment
properties only when they are being held to earn
rentals or for long term capital appreciation or both.

Investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.
Land is not depreciated. The cost of property includes
all directly attributable costs including the borrowing

costs that are directly attributable to the construction
of the assets and excludes the cost of day-to-day
servicing of an investment property.

Depreciation on buildings is calculated on a straight
line basis over the estimated useful life of 25 years.
The carrying values of investment properties are
reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and
where the carrying values exceed the estimated
recoverable amount, the assets are written down to
their recoverable amount.

An item of investment property is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset is included
in the income statement in the year the asset is
derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is at fair
value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as
either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end

of each reporting period. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset
are considered to modify the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes
in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense
on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in
the income statement as the expense category that is
consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not
amortised, but are tested for impairment annually,
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.
The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually
to determine whether the indefinite life continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured as the difference
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - For the year ended 31 December 2012

3.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the income
statement when the asset is derecognised.

Deep sea transportation charter-out contracts and
offshore contracts

Deep sea transportation charter-out contracts and
offshore contracts that have definite useful lives
ranging between 2 - 3 years.

Deferred dry docking costs and special survey

Dry docking costs incurred on vessels are deferred and
are amortised over a period of 30 months and special
survey over a period of 60 months.

Investment in associates

The Group's investment in its associates, entities
in which the Group has significant influence, are
accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method, such investments are initially
recognised at cost. The carrying amounts of these
investments are adjusted to recognise changes in the
Group's share of net assets of the associates since the
acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associates are
included in the carrying amounts of the investments
and are neither amortised nor individually tested for
impairment.

The income statement reflects the Group's share of the
results of operations of the associates. When there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of an
associate, the Group recognises its share of any such
changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and the associates

are eliminated to the extent of the interests in the
associates.

The Group's share of profit or loss of an associate

is shown on the face of the income statement and
represents profit or loss after tax and non-controlling
interests in the subsidiaries of the associates.

The financial statements of the associates are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Group.
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the
accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
impairment loss on its investment in its associates. At
each reporting date, the Group determines whether
there is objective evidence that the investments in
the associate are impaired. If there is such evidence,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amounts of the
associates and their carrying values and recognises
the loss as ‘Share of losses of associates’ in the
consolidated income statement.

If there is any loss of significant influence over the
associates, the Group measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any differences
between the carrying amounts of the associates upon
loss of significant influence and the fair values of the
retained investments and proceeds from disposal are
recognised in profit or loss.

Investment securities
The Group maintains two separate investment
portfolios, as follows:
« Financial investments at fair value through profit or
loss

« Available-for-sale investments

All regular way purchases and sales of investments
are recognised on the trade date when the Group
becomes, or ceases to be, a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Allinvestments are initially recognised at cost being
the fair value of the consideration plus transaction
costs except to those financial instruments at fair
value through profit and loss and is subsequently re-
measured based on the classification as follows:

Financial investments at fair value through profit or
loss:

Financial investments at fair value through profit

or loss include investments held for trading and
investments designated upon initial recognition as
fair value through profit and loss are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value presented in the
consolidated income statement.

Investments are classified as trading investments if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near
term.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at their
initial recognition date and only if the criteria under
IAS 39 are satisfied. The Group has not designated any
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Available-for-sale investments:

Available-for-sale financial investments include equity
investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available-for-sale are those that are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated
at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in
this category are those that are intended to be held
for an indefinite period of time and that may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in the market conditions.
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After initial measurement, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the fair value reserve until
the investment is derecognised, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss is recognised in investment
income, or when the investment is determined to

be impaired, the cumulative loss is reclassified from
the fair value reserve to the consolidated income
statement. Interest earned whilst holding available-
for-sale financial investments is reported as interest
income using the EIR method.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sellits available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term is still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets and management'’s intention to do
so significantly changes in the foreseeable future, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets.
Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted
when the financial assets meet the definition of loans
and receivables and the Group has the intent and
ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable future
or until maturity. Reclassification to the held-to-
maturity category is permitted only when the entity
has the ability and intention to hold the financial asset
accordingly.

For financial assets reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the related fair value carrying amount at
the date of reclassification becomes its new amortised
cost and any previous gain or loss on the asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit

or loss over the remaining life of the investment using
the EIR. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the EIR. If the
asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then
the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the
consolidated income statement.

Loans to LNG and LPG companies

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that

are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the Effective
Interest Rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the consolidated income
statement. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Impairment and un-collectibility of financial assets
An assessment is made at each reporting date to
determine whether there is objective evidence that

a specific financial asset may be impaired. If such
evidence exists, any impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement. Impairment is
determined as follows:
(a) For assets carried at fair value, impairment is the
difference between cost and fair value;

(b)For assets carried at cost, impairment is the
difference between cost and the present value of
future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.

(c) For assets carried at amortised cost, impairment is
the difference between carrying amount and the
present value of future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
a) Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised where:
- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;

- the Group retains the right to receive cash flows
from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third
party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or

expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability

are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs are those expenses incurred
in bringing each product to its present location and
condition, as follows:

Stores, spares and goods for sale - Purchase cost on a
weighted average basis
Work in progress - Cost of direct materials and labour
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - For the year ended 31 December 2012

3.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Accounts receivable (continued)

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
price less any further costs expected to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable is stated at original invoice amount
less provision for any uncollectible amounts. An
estimate for doubtful debts is made when collection

of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are
written off when there is no possibility of recovery.

Notes due from customers are disclosed as a separate
item on the consolidated statement of financial
position except those with a remaining term to
maturity of less than one year, which are included
under accounts receivable and prepayments.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in
banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether
there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value

in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Accounts payable and accruals

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the
future for goods or services received, whether billed by
the supplier or not.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

Interest bearing loans and borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value of the amount borrowed, less
directly attributable transaction costs. After initial
recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR

amortisation is included as finance costs in the income
statement.

Gain or loss is recognised in consolidated income
statement when the liability is derecognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in the period in which
they are incurred with unpaid amounts included in
“accounts payable and accruals”.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or construction of investment properties,
property and vessels are capitalised and form part of
the cost of the assets. The capitalisation of borrowing
costs will cease once the asset is ready for its intended
use. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has an
obligation (legal or constructive) arising from a past
event, and the costs to settle the obligation are both
probable and able to be reliably measured.

Employees’ end of service benefits

End of service gratuity plans

The Company provides end of service benefits to its
employees in accordance with employment contracts
and Qatar Law No. 14 of 2004, the Labour Law. The
entitlement to these benefits is based upon the
employees'’ final salary and length of service, subject
to the completion of a minimum service period. The
expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the
period of employment.

Pension plan

Under Law No. 24 of 2002 on Retirement and Pension,
the Company is required to make contributions to

a Government fund scheme for Qatari employees
calculated as a percentage of the Qatari employees’
salaries. The Company's obligations are limited to these
contributions, which are expensed when due.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the
rate of exchange ruling at date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are reported at the
exchange rate ruling at reporting date. Any gain or loss
arising from changes in exchange rates is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such
as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps
to hedge its risks associated with interest rate and
foreign currency fluctuations. Such derivative financial
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instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date on which a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and
as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
on derivatives during the year that do not qualify
for hedge accounting are taken directly to the
consolidated income statement.

The Group uses forward currency contracts to hedge
its risks associated with foreign exchange rate
fluctuations. These are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position at fair value and any
subsequent resultant gain or loss on forward currency
contracts is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. The fair value of forward currency contracts
is calculated by reference to current forward exchange
rates for contracts with similar maturity profiles.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are
classified as:

- fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to
changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or
liability or unrecognised firm commitment (except
for Foreign currency risk); or

- cash flow hedges when hedging exposure to
variability in cash flows that is either attributable to
a particular risk associated with a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction
or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm
commitment;

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the

Company formally designates and documents the
hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to
apply hedge accounting and the risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The
documentation includes identification of the hedging
instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature
of the risk being hedged and how the entity will assess
the hedging instrument's effectiveness in offsetting
the exposure to changes in the hedged item'’s fair value
or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such

hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving
offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and

are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that
they actually have been highly effective throughout
the financial reporting periods of which they were
designated.

Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge
accounting are accounted for as follows:

Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging derivative is
recognised in the income statement. The change in the
fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk
hedged is recorded as a part of the carrying value of
the hedged item and is also recognised in profit or loss.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income in the hedging reserve, while
any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in
the income statement as other operating expenses.
Amounts recognised as other comprehensive income
are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged
transaction affects profit or loss, such as when the
hedged financial income or financial expense is
recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. When the
hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-
financial liability, the amounts are recognised as other
comprehensive income are transferred to the initial
carrying amount of the non financial asset or liability.

Fair values
For investments traded in an active market, fair value is
determined by reference to quoted market bid prices.

The fair value of interest-bearing items is estimated
based on discounted cash flows using interest rates for
items with similar terms and risk characteristics.

For unquoted equity investments, fair value is
determined by reference to the market value of
a similar investment or is based on the expected
discounted cash flows.

The operating revenues comprise of the activities of the following Pillars:

Milaha Capital

Milaha Maritime and Logistics
Milaha Offshore

Milaha Trading

Milaha Gas and Petrochem

2012 2011
QR'000 QR'000
500,276 385,179
700,793 600,927
551,178 563,065
368,780 391,353
232,024 250,903
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Revenues of Milaha capital comprise of the following:

2012 2011
QR'000 QR'000
Dividend income 105,970 101,822
Profit on disposal of available-for-sale investments 138,372 9,266
Profit on disposal of investments at fair value through profit or loss 2,262 7,659
Net fair value (loss) gain on financial investments at fair value
through profit or loss (6,747) 19,521
Rental income 163,273 155,081
Qatar Quarries 97,146 91,830
2012 2011
QR’'000 QR’000
Communication and utilities 12,017 11,418
Write off of investment properties (Note 10) 11,717 -
Claims and insurance 11,467 12,252
Office expenses 10,948 7,483
Immigration and pass 7,664 6,590
Traveling and entertainment 6,616 6,047
Cleaning and safety 5,500 5,595
Legal and professional fees 5,395 14,611
Repairs and maintenance 4,467 3,030
Business promotion 3,342 2,228
Provision for bad and doubtful debts (Note 17) 1,264 1,361
Miscellaneous expenses 7,894 768

Miscellaneous income includes exit fees amounting to QR 41,270,750 received by a subsidiary, towards the
facilitation and arrangement for exit of one of the shareholders from certain LNG companies

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the equity holders of the Parent by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

2012 2011
QR’000 QR’000

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Parent (QR'000)

Weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year (in thousands)

Basic and diluted earnings per share (QR)

Note:
There were no potentially dilutive shares outstanding at any time during the year and hence the diluted earnings per share are
equal to the basic earnings per share.
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Movements of other comprehensive income
Cash flow hedges

Net movement during the year

Group share of net movement of associates

Total effect on other comprehensive income (loss) resulting
from hedging reserve

Available-for-sale investments

Net movement in fair value reserve of investments

Realised gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments
Group share of net movement of associates

Reclassification adjustments for impairment included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Total effect on other comprehensive (loss) income resulting from

available-for-sale investments

2012
QR’000

(1,117)
29,174

(173,149)
(147,251)
5,927

30,426

2011
QR’000

1,267
(702,558)

211,664
(3,267)
3,227

31,795
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - For the year ended 31 December 2012

Property
under
Land Buildings construction Total
QR’000 QR’000 QR'000  QR'000
Cost:
At 1 January 2012 161,363 625,793 8,050 795,206
Additions during the year - 173 - 173
Transfers - 7,850 (7,850) -
Disposals - (833) (200) (1,033)
Write off - (24,086) - (24,086)
At 31 December 2012
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2012 - 110,986 - 110,986
Charge for the year - 25,090 - 25,090
Disposals - (829) - (829)
Relating write off - (12,369) - (12,369)
At 31 December 2012
Net carrying amounts:
At 31 December 2012
Property
under
Land Buildings construction Total
QR’000 QR’000 QR'000  QR'000
Cost:
At 1 January 2011 159,164 599,374 4,587 763,125
Additions during the year - - 3,463 3,463
Transfers from property, vessels and equipment
(Note 9) 2,199 26,419 - 28,618
At 31 December 2011
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2011 - 54,665 - 54,665
Charge for the year - 31,571 - 31,571
Transfers from property vessels and equipment
(Note 9) - 24,750 - 24,750

At 31 December 2011

Net carrying amounts:
At 31 December 2011

Notes:
(i) Investment properties are located in the State of Qatar.

(i) Investment properties with a carrying value of QR 647,382,000 as of 31 December 2012 (31 December
2011: QR 684,220,000) were appraised by an accredited independent appraiser, DTZ, at a fair value of QR
2,447,939,000 (31 December 2011: QR 2,411,997,000). The appraiser is an industry specialist in valuing these
types of investment properties.

(iii) The Company earned rental income amounting to QR 146,417,000 for the year ended 31 December 2012 (31
December 2011: QR. 150,407,560). Direct operating expenses related to the investment properties (including
depreciation) amounting to QR 35,098,000 (31 December 2011: QR 42,349, 000) have been reflected under
operating expenses.

(iv) During the year ended 31 December 2012, the management revised the estimates of the Group’s Buildings
classified as investment properties from 20 years to 25 years. Management believes that the revised
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estimated useful lives reflect more appropriately the useful lives of the buildings.
Had the management continued to depreciate the buildings based on the previous estimated useful life, the
depreciation charge for the year would have been higher by QR 6,770,914.

(vi) Write off of investment properties represents the write off of a building, classified as investment property by
a subsidiary as a result of the demolition of the building.

Deferred dry Deep sea
dock and special  and Offshore
survey contracts Total
QR'000 QR'000 QR'000
Cost:
At 1 January 2012 167,684 77,242 244,926
Additions 24,937 - 24,937
Write off (2,056) - (2,056)
At 31 December 2012 190,565 7,242 267,807
Amortisation:
At 1 January 2012 111,606 62,300 173,906
Charge for the year 37,510 14,942 52,452
Relating to write off (1,492) - (1,492)
At 31 December 2012 147,624 77,242 224,866
Net carrying amounts:
At 31 December 2012
Deferred dry Deep sea
dock and special  and Offshore
survey contracts Total
QR’000 QR’000 QR’000
Cost:
At 1 January 2011 125,678 77,242 202,920
Additions 42,006 - 42,006
At 31 December 2011 167,684 77,242 244,926
Amortisation:
At 1 January 2011 73,113 29,200 102,313
Charge for the year 38,493 33,100 71,593
At 31 December 2011 111,606 62,300 173,906

Net carrying amounts:
At 31 December 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - For the year ended 31 December 2012

The Group has following investments in Joint Ventures: Group effective

ownership

Country of
Incorporation 2012 2011
QM Tanker Company L.L.C. Cayman Islands 50% 50%
Qatar Engineering and Technology Company W.L.L. Qatar 51% 51%
Qatar Ship Management Company W.L.L. Qatar 51% 51%
Gulf LPG Transport Company W.L.L. Qatar 50% 50%

QM Tanker Company L.L.C.

QM Tanker Company L.L.C. (“QM Tanker") is a limited liability company established with Exxon Mobil. QM Tanker
was incorporated on 12 November 1997. During 2008, the Company sold its ships and become dormant since
then.

Qatar Engineering and Technology Company W.L.L.

Qatar Engineering and Technology Company W.L.L. (“Q-Tech”) is a limited liability company established with
Aban Constructions Pvt. Ltd., India. Q-Tech was incorporated on 27 April 2002 with the objective of carrying out
engineering and other related services. The Company had decided on 11 January 2005 to terminate this Joint
Venture agreement and is in the process of negotiation for recovery of its dues.

Qatar Ship Management Company W.L.L.

Qatar Ship Management Company W.L.L. (“QSMC") is a limited liability company which has been established with
Mitsui O.S.K. Lines Ltd, Japan (MOL) (16.5%), Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha, Japan (NYK) (16.5%), Kawasaki Kisen
Kaisha Ltd, Japan (K-LINE) (8.25%) and Mitsui & Co. Japan (7.75%). QSMC was incorporated on 16 October 2003,
with the objective of operating and managing LNG vessels.

Gulf LPG Transport Company W.L.L.

Gulf LPG Transport Company W.L.L is a limited liability company established with Qatar Gas Transport Company
(NAKILAT). Gulf LPG aims to provide various activities of owning, managing and operating liquid gas transporting
ships.

The Group's share of assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 and income and expenses of jointly
controlled entities for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, which are proportionately consolidated in
the consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

2012 2011
QR'000  QR’000

Share of the joint venture’s statement of financial position:

Current assets 28,003 47,739
Non-current assets 594,660 613,402
Current liabilities (1,098) (7,499)
Non-current liabilities (486,442) (522,858)
Equity
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2012 2011
QR'000 QR'000

Share of the joint venture’s revenue and profit:
Operating revenue
62,218 57,650

Salaries, wages and other benefits (16,085) (16,539)
Operating supplies and expenses (13,873) (14,916)
Depreciation and amortization (18,742) (18,690)
Other operating expenses (878) (1,285)
Operating income 12,640 6,220
Finance costs (9,178) (7,546)
Finance income 5 8

Profit (loss) For the year

The Group has the following investment in associates:

Profit Share Profit Share

Country of
incorporation 2012 2011 2012 2011

Cargotec Qatar W.L.L. (i),(xi) Qatar 51.0% 51.0% 40.0% 40.0%
Irag-Qatar Transport and Shipping Services Com. L.T.D.

(i), (xi) Iraq 51.0% 51.0% 51.0% 51.0%
United Arab Shipping Agency Company W.L.L. (iii) Qatar 40.0% 40.0% 40.0% 40.0%
Qatar Gas Transport Company Limited (NAKILAT)

(Q.S.C.) (iv) Qatar 30.3% 304% 30.3% 30.4%
Camartina Shipping INC. (v) Liberia 29.4% 29.4% 29.4% 29.4%
Peninsula LNG Transport No. 1 Ltd. (vi) Liberia 29.4% 29.4% 29.4% 29.4%
Peninsula LNG Transport No. 2 Ltd. (vi) Liberia 29.4% 29.4% 29.4% 29.4%
Peninsula LNG Transport No. 3 Ltd. (vi) Liberia 29.4% 29.4% 29.4% 29.4%
Qatar LNG Transport Ltd. (vii) Liberia 20.0% 20.0% 20.0% 20.0%
QIM Transport INC. (viii) Panama 33.3% 333% 33.3% 33.3%
KS Membrane 1 & 2 (x) Germany 40% 25% 40% 25%
Man Diesel & Turbo Qatar Navigation W.L.L. (ix), (xi) Qatar 51.0% 51.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Notes:

(i) Cargotec Qatar W.L.L. is engaged in providing maintenance and repair of marine and land based cargo access,
fluid power and control system to off-shore and on-shore oil services and gas facilities.

(i) Irag-Qatar Transport and Shipping Services Company L.T.D. is engaged in providing transportation and
shipping logistics.

(iii) United Arab Shipping Agency Company W.L.L. is engaged in providing cargo and shipping services.

(iv) Qatar Gas Transport Company Limited (Nakilat) (Q.S.C.) is engaged in the sector of gas transportation either
through its own ocean going vessels or by investing in joint ventures with other parties. The Group's share of
this associate has been pledged against loan for working capital purposes (refer to note 24). During the year
ended 31 December 2012, the Group invested an additional amount of QR 8,973,382, whereby increasing the
aggregate holding from 30.32% to 30.42%.

(v) Camartina Shipping INC. was established to acquire, own, operate, and time charter a 135.000 m? Liquefied
Natural Gas (LNG) vessel.

The attached notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - For the year ended 31 December 2012

(vi) Peninsula LNG Transport Ltd No's 1, 2 & 3 were established to acquire, own, operate, and time charter
Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG).

(vii) Qatar LNG Transport Ltd. was established to acquire, own, operate, and time charter a 135.000 m? Liquefied
Natural Gas (LNG) vessel.

(viii) QIM Transport INC was formed with the intention of transporting chemicals out of Qatar.

(ix) Man Diesel & Turbo Qatar Navigation W.L.L. is engaged in trading and maintenance of marine engines,
equipments and spare parts. During the year 2012, the Group invested an additional amount of QR 6,120,000
in response to a rights issue. However, this investment did not have any impact on the percentage holding in
this associate company.

(x) KS Membrane 1 &2 was established to acquire, own, operate, and time charter of 138,130 m3 and 145,000 m3
Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG) vessel. During the current year the Group obtained an additional stake of 15% as
a result of exit of one of the shareholders.

(xi) The Companies listed under (ii), (iii) and (ix) above are not consolidated with the Group'’s results as the Group
does not exercise control over their operations and activities.

The carrying amount of the Group’s investment in associates is as follows:

2012 2011

QR'000  QR’'000

Balance at 1 January 3,617,194 4,197,811
Additional capital contribution in an associate 6,120 -
Share of net movement in effective portions of other comprehensive income 35,101 (699,331)
Dividends received from associates (142,800) (126,000)
Share of results of associates 227,807 244,714
Increase in ownership in an associate 8,973 -

Balance at 31 December

The Group’s share of the results of associates and its aggregated assets (including goodwill) and liabilities are as
follows:

2012 2011

QR'000 QR’'000

Current assets 877,256 901,383
Non-current assets 12,299,885 12,536,464
Current liabilities (243,705) (451,101)
Non-current liabilities (9,181,041) (9,369,552)

Share of associate’s revenue and profit:
Revenue 1,076,418 1,127,104

Profits
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2012 2011
QR'000  QR’000

Quoted equity investments in local companies 2,397,220 2,540,695

Unquoted investments in local companies 67,612 344,836

Unquoted investments in foreign companies 287,356 340,260

Investments in bonds 30,752 57,094
Notes:

(i) Available-for-sale investments represent investments in shares, bonds and investments with fund managers.

(ii) Included in available-for-sale investments are quoted shares in local companies with a fair value of
QR 26,100,000 as of 31 December 2012 (2011: QR 27,820,000), which are restricted due to directors’
memberships in investee companies held by the Company.

(iii) Also included in available-for-sale investments are restricted shares in local companies with a fair value of QR
64,950,000 as of 31 December 2012 (2011: QR 67,693,000) as they represent establishment shares in investee
companies.

(iv) The unquoted investments represent investments in companies in which the Company is a founding
shareholder.

The Group has provided loans to the following LNG and LPG companies through one of its 100% owned
subsidiaries. These loans carry annual interest rates ranging from 6% to 8%.

Name of LNG/ LPG companies Company operating the LNG and LPG companies
India LNG Transport Company No.1 Ltd, Shipping Corporation of India Ltd

Camartina Shipping INC, Liberia Mitsui OSK Lines

K'S Membrane-I, Germany LNG AS1

Qatar LNG Transport Ltd., Liberia Mitsui OSK Lines

India LNG Transport Company No.2 Ltd., Malta Shipping Corporation of India Ltd

Peninsula LNG Transport No. 1 Ltd, Liberia NYK

Peninsula LNG Transport No. 2 Ltd, Liberia K Line

Peninsula LNG Transport No. 3 Ltd, Liberia Mitsui OSK Lines

K S Membrane-Il, Germany LNG AS 2

The loans to the above LNG and LPG companies included the following:

2012 2011

QR’000 QR’000

Loans 348,922 330,805
Accrued Interest 9,434 7,535
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - For the year ended 31 December 2012

Heavy vehicles and spares
Gabbro and aggregate
Other goods for resale

Provision for slow-moving inventories

Movements in the provision for slow-moving inventories are as follows:

At 1 January
Charge for the year
Reversal

At 31 December

Trade accounts receivable (net)

Notes receivable

Accrued income

Staff receivables (i)

Prepaid expenses

Amounts due from related parties (Note 33)

Amounts due from Ministry of Municipality and Urban Planning (ii)
Advances to suppliers

Other receivables

2012
QR’'000

60,442
91,792
19,242

171,476
(9,384)

2012
QR’'000

11,333
2
(1,951)

2012
QR’000

335,099
9,836
115,124
34,366
41,733
4,046
1,999
12,747
42,922

2011
QR’'000

68,661
36,828
20,695

126,184
(11,333)

2011
QR’'000

7,404
3,929

2011
QR’000

399,234
4,722
63,661
32,299
42,955
5,260
3,979
25,542
33,599

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally have settlement terms of 30 to 90 days. As at 31
December 2012, trade accounts receivable at nominal value of QR 22,574,000 (2011: QR 21,310,000) were

impaired. Movement in the allowance for impairment of trade receivables was as follows:

At 1 January
Charge for the year

At 31 December

2012
QR’000

21,310
1,264

2011
QR'000

19,949
1,361
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As at 31 December, the ageing of unimpaired trade accounts receivables is as follows:

Neither past due nor
Total  impaired 0-60days g1-120days 121-180days 181-365days >365 days

QR'000 QR’000 QR’000 QR’'000 QR’000 QR’000
2012 335,099 113,519 135,011 60,866 23,844 1,859
2011 399,234 168,562 153,992 36,066 40,614 -

Unimpaired receivables are expected, on the basis of past experience, to be fully recoverable. It is not the practice
of the Group to obtain collateral over receivables and the vast majority are, therefore, unsecured.

Notes:
(i) Included in staff receivables are loans against end of service benefits amounting to QR 27,403,693 (31
December 2011: QR 26,149,037).

(ii) These amounts represent the outstanding amounts relating to the receivable from the Ministry of
Municipality and Urban Planning for taking over the assets of the Group's subsidiary.

2012 2011
QR'000 QR’000

Quoted investments in local companies 489,290 202,457

Cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise the following:

2012 2011

QR'000 QR'000

Bank balances and cash 73,150 406,374
Short term deposits with banks 1,484,859 516,974
Bank balances and cash 1,558,009 923,348
Less: Term deposits maturing after 90 days (770,783) (100,694)
Less: Bank overdrafts (37) (8,022)

Notes:

(i) Short-term deposits earn interest ranging from 1.8% to 2.85% (2011: from 1.75% to 4.5%) per annum.

Cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise the following:

2012 2011
No of shares No of shares
Thousand thousand

Authorised
Shares of QR 10 each 114,525 114,525
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Number of

shares
thousand QR'000
Issued and fully paid
At 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011
Shares of QR 10 each. 114,525 1,145,252

In accordance with Qatar Commercial Companies Law No.5 of 2002 and Articles of Association, 10% of the profit
for the year should be transferred to legal reserve. The Company may resolve to discontinue such annual transfer
when the reserve totals 50% of the capital. Accordingly the Company has resolved to discontinue such annual
transfers to the legal reserve.

The legal reserve includes QR 360,000,000 and QR 661,050,000 relating to share premium arising from the rights
issue of shares in 2004 and 2008 respectively. The legal reserve also includes QR 3,495,400 relating share premium
arising from the issue of new shares in 2010.

The reserve is not available for distribution except in the circumstances stipulated in the Companies’ law.

In accordance with clause (41) of the Company'’s Articles of Association, the general assembly based on the board
of directors’ proposal may decide to transfer a portion of the net profit to a general reserve. This reserve may be
used in any manner as decided by the General Assembly.

Cash flow hedges:

At 31 December 2012, the Group had two cash flow hedges relating to its subsidiaries to hedge their exposure to
interest rate risk which are as follows:

Qatar Shipping Company S.P.C.:

At 31 December 2012, Qatar Shipping Company S.P.C. had an interest rate swap agreement in place with a
notional amount of USD 8,512,800 (QR 30,983,000) (31 December 2011: USD 9,930,000) (QR 36,146,000), whereby
it receives a variable rate equal to USD LIBOR and pays a fixed rate of interest of 3.21% on the notional amount.
The swap is being used to hedge the exposure to interest rate fluctuations on one of its loans. The term loan and
interest rate swap have the same critical terms. This cash flow hedge is assessed to be highly effective. The fair
value of the interest rate swaps are calculated by reference to the market valuation of the swap agreements.

Halul Offshore Services W.L.L.:

At December 31, 2012, Halul Offshore Services W.L.L. had an interest rate swap agreement in place with a
notional amount of USD 54,810,000 (QR 199,590,615), whereby it receives a variable rate of USD 3 months LIBOR
and pays a fixed rate of interest of 1.30% on the notional amount. The swap is being used to hedge the exposure
to interest rate fluctuations on its loans (Note 16). The loan facility and the interest rate swap have the same
critical terms. This cash flow hedge is assessed to be highly effective. The fair value of the interest rate swaps are
calculated by reference to the market valuation of the swap agreements.

The Board of Directors have proposed a 37.5% cash dividend of QR 3.75 per share totalling QR 429.5 million for
the year 2012, which is subject to the approval of the equity holders at the Annual General Assembly.

During the year, following the approval at the Annual General Assembly held on 15 April 2012, the Company paid a
35% cash dividend of QR 3.50 per share totalling QR 400.8 million relating to the year 2011 (2010: QR 4 per share,
totalling QR 458.1 million).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - For the year ended 31 December 2012

Effective 2012 2011

Interest rate % Maturity QR’'000 QR’000
Parent company:
Loan 1 (i) LIBOR +0.70 Oct 2015 18,711 25,315
Loan 2 (ii) LIBOR + 0.73 Feb 2017 199,333 247,173
Loan 3 (jii) Note (iii) Jun 2014 364,000 254,800
Loan 4 (iv) LIBOR + 0.50 Jan 2012 - 18,200
Loan 5 (v) LIBOR + 1.15 Jul 2014 582,400 582,400
Loan 6 (vi) LIBOR + 1.60 Dec 2013 486,304 413,504
Subsidiary companies:
Loan 7 (vii) LIBOR + 0.70 May 2013 1,606 8,033
Loan 8 (viii) LIBOR + 0.65 Nov 2015 10,621 17,701
Loan 9 (ix) LIBOR + 0.70 Feb 2015 13,709 20,564
Loan 10 (x) LIBOR + 0.60 Jun 2016 20,711 26,628
Loan 11 (xi) LIBOR + 0.60 Mar 2017 91,036 113,797
Loan 12 (xii) LIBOR + 1.65 Mar 2020 199,591 -
Loan 13 (xiii) LIBOR + 0.80 Sep 2013 15,491 36,147
Loan 14 (xiv) LIBOR + 0.75 Apr 2016 145,479 195,771
Loan 15 (xv) LIBOR + 1.75 June 2022 397,547 =
Loan 16 (xvi) = 24,181 =
Presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:
Current portion 800,322 1,446,311
Non-current portion 1,770,398 513,722

Notes:

(i) Loan 1 was obtained to finance the construction of a showroom and villa complex. The Company is not allowed
to assign or transfer any or all of its rights, benefits or obligations under the loan without the bank’s approval.
This loan is secured by a lien of the showroom and villa properties and repayable on a monthly basis.

(i) Loan 2 was obtained to finance the construction of Qatar Navigation tower. The loan is secured by a first
priority mortgage on the Tower and is repayable in monthly instalments.

(iii) Loan 3 represents unsecured loans and is used for working capital and construction of vessels. In accordance
with the amended agreement dated 6th June 2012 the Company utilised the additional drawdown amounting
to QR 109,200,000 (USD 30 million) thereby increasing the current facility to QR 364,000,000 (USD 100
Million). The loan carries interest at 0.6% the first year and carries interest at LIBOR + 1.50% from the second
year, the facility matures by 30 June 2014, as per the amended agreement.

(iv) Loan 4 represents unsecured loans obtained to finance working capital and building of vessels. This loan has
been fully settled during the year 2012.

(v) Loan 5 is obtained to finance for working capital and building of vessels. The Company extended this loan’s
repayment period from July 2012 to July 2014 as per revised agreement. The loan is pledged by 53,400,000
shares of Qatar Gas Transport Company (NAKILAT) with a fair value of QR 813,816,000 at 31 December 2012
(31 December 2011: QR 934,500,000).

(vi) Loan 6 was obtained for general corporate purposes including refinancing of existing debts and new
investments and is secured by a corporate guarantee of the Company. The loan is repayable on semi-annual
installments. The total loan facility is USD 232,000,000 and at the reporting date the drawn, down was as USD
133,600,000.

(vii)Loan 7 was obtained to finance the purchase of nine vessels. The loan is repayable in quarterly installments.
This loan is secured by assignment of the revenue from each vessel to an account held with the respective
lending bank. Any insurance proceeds in respect of the vessels will be assigned to the lending bank.
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(viii)Loan 8 was obtained to finance the purchase of two anchor handling tug vessels. The loan is repayable in
semi-annual installments. This loan is secured by assignment of the revenue from each vessel to an account
held with the respective lending banks. Any insurance proceeds in respect of the vessels will be assigned to
the lending bank.

(ix) Loan 9 was obtained to finance the purchase of two vessels. The loan is repayable in semi-annual installments.
This loan is secured by assignment of the revenue from each vessel to an account held with the respective
lending banks. Any insurance proceeds in respect of the vessels will be assigned to the lending bank.

(x) Loan 10 was obtained to finance the purchase of 4 utility standby safety vessels. The loan is re-payable in
semi-annual installments. This loan is secured by assignment of the revenue from each vessel to an account
held with the respective lending banks. Any insurance proceeds in respect of the vessels will be assigned to
the lending bank.

(xi) Loan 11 was obtained to finance the purchase of two platform supply vessels, which are currently under
construction. The loan is repayable in semi-annual installments.

(xii)Loan 12 amounting to QR 220,238,000 was obtained for the purpose of financing or refinancing the
mortgaged vessels and is repayable by March 2020 in 32 quarterly installments. This loan has been hedged
against interest rate exposure. (Note 23)

(xiii)Loan 13 was obtained to finance the construction of two clean product tankers namely, Jinan and Dukhan.
It is secured by a first priority mortgage over the above tankers. The loan is repayable in equal quarterly
installments. The Group has entered into an interest swap to hedge the interest rate exposure on this loan
(Note 23).

(xiv)Loan 14 was obtained to partially finance construction of two LPG/ Ammonia carrier and six Aframax size
crude/clean tankers. The loan is secured by a first priority mortgage over the vessels. The loan is repayable in
quarterly installments.

(xv)Loan 15 amounting to QR 400,400,000 was obtained to finance the construction of 19 vessels and is repayable
in 27 equal quarterly installments commencing June 2015 and one final balloon payment of QR 160M at the
end of the 10th year. Interest is served on a quarterly basis.

(xvi)These represent short term revolving facilities used for working capital purposes. This facility carry interest at
floating rates and secured by contract proceeds.

During 2011, the Group has received QR 187,497,000 an interest free advance from a customer for the
construction of harbour tugs, pilot boats, mooring boat services and service boat services. The advance payment
shall be repaid through deductions from the certified interim invoices. 10% of the invoices amount will be
deducted to settle from each invoice until such time the full amount of the advance payment has been repaid.

2012 2011
QR'000 QR'000

Movements in the provision recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position are as follows:

Provision as at 1 January 68,921 59,438
Provided during the year 19,981 15,915
End of service benefits paid (11,472) (3,464)
Transferred to the Pension fund (4,796) (2,968)

Provision as at 31 December

Employees’ end of service benefits
End of service benefits plans 69,943 66,018
Pension plan (Note 29) 2,691 2,903
Provision as at 31 December
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The pension scheme is a defined contribution pension plan and pension obligations are payable on demand to a

Government pension fund. Accordingly, the amounts payable have been disclosed as a current liability.

Finance leases relate to the Group’s Non Vessel Operating Common Carrier (NVOCC) operations for containers
with lease terms ranging from 3 to 5 years. The Group has the option to purchase the containers for a nominal

amount at the conclusion of the lease agreements.

Within 1 year
More than 1 year and less than 5 years

Less future finance charges
Present value of minimum lease payments

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

Current portion
Non-current portion

Trade accounts and notes payable

Accrued expenses

Pension plan (Note 27)

Advances from customers

Contribution to social and sports fund (Note 30)
Negative fair value of IRS

Provision for liquidated damages (i)

Other payables

Notes:

Minimum lease
Payments

Present value
of Payments

2012 2011 2012

2011

QR’000 QR'000 QR'000 QR’000

3,231 6,835 3080
317 3,548 300

(168)  (675)

2012
QR'000

3,080
300

2012
QR'000

109,297
151,163
2,691
50,511
20,885
4,496
9,594
120,720

6,257
3,451

2011
QR’'000

6,257
3,451

2011
QR’000

116,270
134,841
2,903
59,065
17,774
925
3,210
124,754

(i) Provision for liquidated damages relates to liquidated damages on account of the late delivery of vessels for

hire for one of the Group's subsidiary.

In accordance with Law No. 13 of 2008, the Group made an appropriation of profit of QR 20,885,000 (2011:
17,774,000) equivalent to 2.5% of the consolidated profit for the year for the support of sports, cultural, social

and charitable activities.
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Capital commitments

2012 2011
QR'000  QR’000

Investments
Uncalled portion of investments

Property, vessels and equipment
Estimated capital expenditure approved but not contracted
as of the reporting date

Operating lease commitments
The Company has entered into rent contracts. These contracts are accounted for as operating leases. The future
lease commitments in respect of the above rent contracts are as follows:

2012 2011

QR'000 QR'000

Within one year 45,848 45,847
After one year but not more than five years 61,128 106,976

Total operating lease expenditure contracted for at the reporting date

At 31 December 2012, the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of bank and other guarantees and other
matters arising in the ordinary course of business from which it is anticipated that no material liabilities will arise
amounting to QR 892,604,000 (31 December 2011: QR 766,663,000) as follows:

2012 2011

QR'000 QR'000

Letters of guarantee 751,582 644,305
Letters of credit 141,022 122,358

Related party transactions

Related parties represent associated companies, affiliate entities, major equity holders, directors and key
management personnel of the Company, and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by
such parties. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Company’s management.

Transactions with related parties included in the consolidated income statement are as follows:

2012 2011

Sales Purchases Sales Purchases
QR’000 QR’'000 QR’000 QR’000

Associate company 460 6,198 691 1,184
Directors 5,273 1,430 8,366 1,682
Other related parties - - 49,375 6,676

The attached notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - For the year ended 31 December 2012

Related party balances
Balances with related parties included in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

2012 2011

Trade Trade Trade Trade

receivaPles payables receivaPles payables

QR’'000 QR’'000 QR’'000 QR’'000

Associate companies 636 - 1,293 -
Directors 2,366 - 3,967 -

Other related parties 1,044 - - R

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made at normal market prices. Outstanding balances at the

year-end are unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or
received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has not
recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (2011: Nil). This assessment

is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in
which the related party operates.

Loans due from associates

Loans to LNG and LPG companies amounting to QR 358,356,000 (2011:QR 338,340,000) is disclosed as part of
Note 15.

Compensation of directors and other key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year were as follows:

2012 2011

QR'000  QR'000

Short-term benefits 18,112 12,658
Employees’ end of service benefits 2,852 2,622
Board of directors remuneration — cash 28,200 21,700
Board of directors remuneration of subsidiaries — cash 10,000 10,000
Board of directors remuneration - in kind 682 495

During the year ended 31 December 2012 the Group has carried out an internal reorganisation resulting in the
restatement of the previous reported segments.

The Group is now organised into six pillars as follows, which constitute five reportable segments:
« Milaha Capital - provides corporate finance advisory services to Milaha and its subsidiaries, in addition to

managing its proprietary portfolio of financial and real estate investments and holding the investment of Qatar
Quarry Company W.L.L.

« Milaha Maritime & Logistics - delivers a comprehensive range of services to major importers, exporters and
shipping companies in the region, including oil & gas majors. The activities include logistics services, container

feeder shipping, NVOCC operations, bulk shipping, shipping agencies, port management and operations,
shipyard and steel fabrication.

« Milaha Offshore - provides comprehensive offshore support services to the oil and gas industry across the
region. The Company currently operates a fleet of more than 30 offshore service vessels, which include safety
standby vessels, anchor handling tugs, crew boats, workboats and dynamic positioning (DP) vessels. It provides
a complete range of diving services including saturation diving.

The attached notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements



« Milaha Trading - represents some of the well-known truck, heavy equipment, machinery and lubrication brands
in Qatar. The Company markets its principals’ products and provides critical after sales service. Milaha Trading
also owns and operates an IATA-approved travel agency, one of the oldest in the State of Qatar.

« Milaha Gas and Petrochem — owns, manages and operates a state-of-the-art fleet of LPG and LNG carriers
and provides ocean transportation services to international energy and industrial companies. It further owns
and manages a young fleet of product tankers and one crude carrier. The segment also operates a number of
product tankers in partnership with international trading and shipping companies.

Adjustments with respect to Milaha corporate represent costs captured and subsequently allocated to various
business pillars by way of a laid down methodology. Milaha Corporate provides necessary services to all the
pillars to run their respective business. These services are costs of management, corporate development and
communications, internal audit, legal affairs, shared services, information technology, procurement, human
resources and administration and finance. The costs are subsequently allocated

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating
profit or loss and is measured consistently with operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements.

Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with
third parties.

The attached notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - For the year ended 31 December 2012

Geographic segments
The Group provides services in the State of Qatar and United Arab Emirates (UAE). Operating revenues and profits
of the Group after the elimination of intercompany segments are as follows:

2012 2011

Qatar UAE Total Qatar UAE Total

QR'000 QR'000 QR'000 QR'000 QR'000 QR'000

Operating revenues 2,189,399 163,652 2,353,051 2,086,108 105,319 2,191,42

Profit (loss) for the year

Objective and policies

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise interest bearing loans and borrowings, obligation under finance
leases, bank overdrafts, trade accounts payable, amounts due to related parties and other payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various financial
assets such as trade accounts receivable, amounts due from related parties, loans to LNG and LPG companies,
available for sale investments and cash and bank balances, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Market
risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and equity
price will affect the Group's income, equity or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The management
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group's interest bearing loans and borrowings and short term deposits with floating interest
rates.

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's financial
assets and liabilities with floating interest rates and fixed interest instruments. To manage the risk of changes
in floating interest rate on its interest bearing loan, the Group has entered into interest rate swaps as explained
in Note 23. Under the swap agreements, the Group will pay an agreed fixed interest rate and receive a floating
interest rate.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the consolidated income statement to reasonably possible
changes in interest rates by 25 basis points, with all other variables held constant. The sensitivity of the
consolidated income statement is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates for one year, based on the
floating rate financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 December 2012. The effect of decreases in interest
rates is expected to be equal and opposite to the effect of the increases shown.

Effect on
Changes profit for
in basis the year

points QR
2012
Floating interest rate instruments +25 (4,725)
2011
Floating interest rate instruments +25 (4,442)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in foreign exchange rates. Most of the Group'’s balances are denominated in US Dollars and UAE Dirhams
as the Qatari Riyal is pegged to the US Dollars, the balances in US Dollars and UAE dirhams are not considered to
represent significant currency risk to the Group.

The attached notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements



Equity price risk

The Group’s listed and unlisted investments are susceptible to equity price risk arising from uncertainties
about future values of the investments. Reports on the equity portfolio are submitted to the Group's senior
management are reviewed by the Group’s senior management on a regular basis.

At the reporting date, the Group’s exposure to listed equity securities at fair value includes both available-for-sale
investments and held-for-trading investments. An increase or decrease of 5% on the Qatar Exchange (QE) index
would have an impact of approximately QR 24,465,000 (2011: QR 10,123,000) on the consolidated statement

of income in respect of held for trading investments. In respect of available-for-sale investments, a decrease

of 5% on the QE index would have an impact of approximately QR 119,861,000 (2011: QR127,035,000) on the
consolidated statement of income or equity attributable to the Group, depending on whether or not the decline
is significant and prolonged. An increase of 5% in the value of the listed securities would impact equity in a similar
amount but will not have an effect on income unless there is an impairment charge associated with it.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the
other party to incur a financial loss. The Group's exposure to credit risk is as indicated by the carrying amount of
its assets which consist principally of accounts receivable, loans to LNG and LPG companies and bank balances.

The Group seeks to limit its credit risk with respect to clients and customers by setting credit limits for individual
client and monitoring outstanding receivables. As it deals with credit worthy clients and the dues are collected
based on the specified terms in the contracts, the Group’s exposure to credit risk is minimal.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these
instruments are as follows:

2012 2011

QR’000 QR’'000

Loans to LNG and LPG Companies (Note 15) 358,566 338,340
Trade account receivables 335,099 399,234
Notes receivables 11,750 6,543
Amounts due from Ministry of Municipality and Urban Planning 1,999 3,979
Staff receivables 34,366 32,299
Amounts due from related parties 4,046 5,260
Other receivables 42,922 33,599
Bank balances (excluding cash) 1,724,392 921,769

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s
approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Group's reputation.

The Group limits its liquidity risk by ensuring bank facilities are available. The Group's terms of revenue require
amounts to be settled within its specified terms in the contracts. Trade accounts payable are normally settled
within the terms of purchase from the supplier.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at 31 December 2012 based on
contractual undiscounted payments.

The attached notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - For the year ended 31 December 2012

On Lessthan 1to5
demand 1 year years Over5 Total
QR'000 QR'000 QR'000 years QR’'000
2012
Bank overdrafts 37 - - - 37
Trade accounts and notes payable - 109,297 - - 109,297
Other payables - 120,720 - - 120,720
Contribution to social and sport fund - 20,885 - - 20,885
Interest bearing loans and borrowings - 765,129 1,612,039 308,173 2,685,341
Obligation under finance lease - 3,070 310 - 3,380
Total
On Lessthan 1to5
demand 1 year years Over 5 Total
QR'000 QR'000  QR'000 years QR'000
2011
Bank overdrafts 8,022 - - - 8,022
Trade accounts and notes payable - 116,270 - - 116,270
Contribution to social and sport fund - 17,774 - - 17,774
Other payables - 124,754 - - 124,754
Interest bearing loans and borrowings - 1,465,375 523,177 - 1,988,552
Obligation under finance lease - 6,339 3,484 - 9,708
Total 8,022 1,730,512 526,661 - 2,265,080

Capital management
The Management'’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business.

The management seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. The Group target is
to achieve a return on equity holders’ equity greater than the weighted average interest expense on interest
bearing loans and borrowings.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic and
business conditions and equity holders’ expectation. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company
may adjust the dividend payment to equity holders or increase capital. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes during the year end 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by equity attributable to the equity
holders of the Parent.

The gearing ratio as at 31 December is as follows:

2012 2011

QR'000 QR'000

Debt (i) 2,570,720 1,960,033
Less: Cash and bank balances (1,558,009) (923,348)
Net debt 1,012,711 1,036,685
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent 10,723,355 10,565,659
Gearing ratio 9.4% 9.8%

(i) Debt comprises of interest bearing loans and borrowings as detailed in Note 25

The attached notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements



Financial instruments comprise of financial assets, financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments.

Financial assets consist of bank balances and cash,available-for-sale investments, financial investments at fair
value through profit or loss other financial assets and receivables. Financial liabilities consist of bank overdrafts,
interest bearing loans and borrowings, accounts payable and accrued expenses. Derivative financial instruments
consist of interest rate swaps.

A comparison by class of the carrying value and fair value of the Company'’s financial instruments that are carried
in the financial statements are set out below:

Carrying amount Fair value

2012 2011 2012 2011
QR’000 QR’'000 QR'000 QR'000

Financial assets

Bank balances and cash 1,558,009 923,348 1,558,009 923,348
Available-for-sale investments 2,782,940 3,282,885 2,782,940 3,282,885
Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss 489,290 202,457 489,290 202,457
Loans to LNG and LPG companies 358,356 338,340 358,356 338,340
Notes receivables 11,750 6,543 11,750 6,543
Trade accounts and other receivables 418,432 515,291 418,432 515,291
Carrying amount Fair value
2012 2011 2012 2011

QR’000 QR’'000 QR'000 QR’'000

Financial liabilities

Bank overdrafts 37 8,022 37 8,022
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 2,570,720 1,960,033 2,570,720 1,960,033
Obligations under finance leases 3,380 9,708 3,380 9,708
Trade and other payables 250,902 262,008 250,902 262,008
Pension plan 2,691 2,903 2,691 2,903
Interest rate swaps 4,496 925 4,496 925

2,832,226 2,243,599 2,832,226 2,243,599

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
« Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, and other current liabilities approximate their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

« Fair value of available-for-sale investments and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is derived
from quoted market prices in active markets.

* Fair value of unquoted available-for-sale financial assets is estimated using appropriate valuation techniques.

* Loans to LNG and LPG companies are evaluated by the Group based on parameters such as interest rates,
specific country risk factors, individual creditworthiness of the customer and the risk characteristics of the
financed project. As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amounts of such receivables are not materially
different from their calculated fair values.

* The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties, principally financial
institutions with investment grade credit ratings. Derivatives are valued based on market valuation provided by
the respective counterparties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - For the year ended 31 December 2012

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by
valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based
on observable market data.

At 31 December the Group held the following financial instruments measured at fair value:

2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
QR’000 QR’000 QR’000 QR’000

Assets measured at fair value
Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss 489,290 489,290 - -

Available-for-sale financial investments:

Quoted shares 2,397,220 2,397,220 - -
Unquoted shares 2,613 - 2,613
Investments in bonds 30,752 - 30,752 -

Liabilities measured at fair value
Interest rate swaps

2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
QR’000 QR’000 QR’000 QR’000

Assets measured at fair value
Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss 202,457 202,457 - -

Available-for-sale financial assets:

Quoted shares 2,540,695 2,540,695 - -
Unquoted shares 302,162 - 302,162 -
Investments in bonds 57,094 - 57,094 -

Liabilities measured at fair value
Interest rate swaps

institutions with investment grade credit ratings. Derivatives are valued based on market valuation provided by
the respective counterparties.

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by
valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based
on observable market data.
At 31 December the Group held the following financial instruments measured at fair value:

Unquoted available-for-sale investments include investments amounting to QR 352,355,000 (2011: QR
382,934,000), carried at cost, as their fair values cannot be reliably estimated, due to the uncertain nature of cash
flows.

The attached notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements



The Group does not hold credit enhancement or collateral to mitigate credit risk. The carrying amount of financial
assets therefore represents the potential credit risk.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and

the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
which has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting

date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the
control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Impairment of available-for-sale equity investments

The Group treats available-for-sale equity investments as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination

of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires considerable judgment. In addition, the Group evaluates other
factors, including normal volatility in share price for quoted equities and the future cash flows and the discount
factors for unquoted equities.

Impairment of trade accounts receivable

An estimate of the collectible amount of trade accounts receivable is made when collection of the full amount
is no longer probable. For individually significant amounts, this estimation is performed on an individual basis.
Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are past due, are assessed collectively and a provision
applied according to the length of time past due, based on historical recovery rates.

Impairment of inventories

Inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realisable value. When inventories become old or obsolete, an
estimate is made of their net realisable value. For individually significant amounts this estimation is performed
on an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are old or obsolete, are assessed
collectively and a provision applied according to the inventory type and the degree of ageing or obsolescence,
based on anticipated selling prices.

Useful lives of property, vessel and equipment and investment properties

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives of its property, vessel and equipment and
investment properties for calculating depreciation. This estimate is determined after considering the expected
usage of the asset or physical wear and tear. Management reviews the residual value and useful lives annually
and future depreciation charge would be adjusted where the management believes the useful lives differ from
previous estimates.

Classification of investment securities

On acquisition of an investment security, the Group decides whether it should be classified as “investments at fair
value through profit or loss” or “available-for-sale”. The Group follows the guidance of IAS 39 on classifying its
investments.
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Fair value of unquoted equity investments

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using valuation techniques including the
discounted cash flows model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible,

but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. The judgments include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Going concern

The Group’s management has made an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and is
satisfied that the Group has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the
management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’'s ability to
continue as a going concern. Therefore, the consolidated financial statements continue to be prepared on a going
concern basis.

During the current financial year, certain of the previously has reported amounts have been reclassified to
conform with the current year presentation, with the objective of improving the quality of information presented.
Such re-classifications did not have an impact on the previously reported profits, equity or assets of the Group.

The attached notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements
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